
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, 28 April 2016 
1.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Westminster Suite, 8th Floor, Local 
Government House, Smith Square, London, 
SW1P 3HZ 
 
 



 

 

Guidance notes for visitors 

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ 

 
Welcome! 

Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants. 

 

Security 

All visitors (who do not already have an LGA ID badge), are requested to report to the Reception 

desk where they will be asked to sign in and will be handed a visitor’s badge to be worn at all times 

whilst in the building. 

 

Fire instructions 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the green Fire Exit 

signs. Go straight to the assembly point in Tufton Street via Dean Trench Street (off Smith Square). 

 

DO NOT USE THE LIFTS. 

DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS. 

DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 

 

Open Council 

“Open Council”, on the 1st floor of LG House, provides informal  

meeting and business facilities with refreshments, for local authority members/ 

officers who are in London.  

 

Toilets  

Toilets for people with disabilities are situated on the Basement, Ground, 2nd, 4th, 6th and 7th floors. 

Female toilets are situated on the basement, ground, 1st, 3rd, 5th and 7th floors. Male toilets are 

available on the basement, ground, 2nd, 4th, 6th and 8th floors.   

 

Accessibility 

Every effort has been made to make the building as accessible as possible for people with 

disabilities. Induction loop systems have been installed in all the larger meeting rooms and at the 

main reception. There is a parking space for blue badge holders outside the Smith Square entrance 

and two more blue badge holders’ spaces in Dean Stanley Street to the side of the building. There is 

also a wheelchair lift at the main entrance. For further information please contact the Facilities 

Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015. 

 

Further help 

Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help 

or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk 

 

Please don’t forget to sign out at reception and return your badge when you depart. 

 



 

 

 
 
LGA Community Wellbeing Board 
28 April 2016 

 
There will be a meeting of the Community Wellbeing Portfolio at 1.30 pm on Thursday, 28 April 
2016 Westminster Suite, 8th Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ. 
 
Attendance Sheet: 
Please ensure that you sign the attendance register, which will be available in the meeting room.  It 
is the only record of your presence at the meeting. 
 
Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place in advance of the meeting. Please contact your political group as 
outlined below for further details. Lunch will be served at the political group meetings.  
 
Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223 email: lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3334 email: Labour.GroupLGA@local.gov.uk  
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224 email: independent.group@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235 email: libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

Location:  
A map showing the location of Local Government House is printed on the back cover.   
 
LGA Contact:  
Paul Goodchild 
0207 664 3005 / paul.goodchild@local.gov.uk 
 
Guest WiFi in Local Government House  
WiFi is available in Local Government House for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless 
Network Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGA-Free-WiFi. You will then need to 
register, either by completing a form or through your Facebook or Twitter account (if you have one). 
You only need to register the first time you log on.  
 
Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of up to £7.20 per hour is 
available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly people or people with disabilities) 
incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 
Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 
The twitter hashtag for this meeting is #lgacwb 
 



 

 

 

 
 

Community Wellbeing Board – Membership 2015/2016 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 7)  
Izzi Seccombe (Chairman) Warwickshire County Council 

Bill Bentley East Sussex County Council 
Colin Noble Suffolk County Council 
Vic Pritchard Bath & North East Somerset Council 

Claire-Louise Leyland Camden Council 
Liz Mallinson Cumbria County Council 

Teresa O'Neill Bexley Council 
  

Substitutes  
Patricia Bradwell Lincolnshire County Council 

Gareth Barnard Bracknell Forest Borough Council 
Graham Gibbens Kent County Council 

Michael Lee Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council 
  
Labour ( 7)  
Linda Thomas (Vice-Chair) Bolton Council 

Barbara Cannon Allerdale Borough Council 
Iain Malcolm South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough Council 

Sandra Samuels Wolverhampton City Council 
Lynn Travis Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 

Rachel Eden Reading Borough Council 
Jackie Meldrum Lambeth London Borough Council 

  
Substitutes  

Maureen Cummings Wakefield Metropolitan District Council 
Jonathan McShane Hackney London Borough Council 

  
Independent ( 2)  

Gillian Ford (Deputy Chair) Havering London Borough Council 
Mark Ereira-Guyer Suffolk County Council 

  
Substitutes  

Adrian Naylor Bradford Metropolitan District Council 
Helen Grant North Yorkshire County Council 

  
Liberal Democrat ( 2)  

Richard Kemp (Deputy Chair) Liverpool City Council 
Doreen Huddart Newcastle upon Tyne City Council 

  
Substitutes  

Lucy Nethsingha Cambridgeshire County Council 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Community Wellbeing Portfolio 
 
Thursday 28 April 2016 
 
1.30 pm 
 
Westminster Suite, 8th Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 
 

 
 

 Item Page Time 
 

 1.30PM - PORTFOLIO REVIEW WORKSHOP    

    

1.   LGA Governance: Portfolio Model Pilot Review 
 

  

 Report included as separate document.  
 

  

 2.30PM - COMMUNITY WELLBEING PORTFOLIO 
MEETING  

  

    

2.   Apologies 
 

  

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

4.   Updates from Portfolio Policy Groups 
 

  

 The Portfolio are asked to consider updates from the four Community Wellbeing work 
streams. Each Lead Member will to present to the Portfolio on the work of their Group, 
and this will be followed by an opportunity for discussion with the whole Portfolio. 
 

  

a) Future Vision of Health and Care Systems Policy 
Group - Cllr Izzi Seccombe 

 

  

b) Funding and Support for Adult Social Care Policy 
Group - Cllr Linda Thomas 

 

  

c) Health and Wellbeing Policy Group - Cllr Richard 
Kemp 

 

  

d) People Policy Group - Cllr Gillian Ford 
 

  

5.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 7  

 4.00PM - CLOSE    





 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Note of last Community Wellbeing Portfolio meeting 
 

Title: 
 

Community Wellbeing Portfolio 

Date: 
 

Friday 2 October 2015 

Venue: Westminster Suite, 8th Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, 
London, SW1P 3HZ 

  

 
Attendance 
An attendance list is attached as Appendix A to this note 

 
 

Item Decisions and actions Action 
 

1   Apologies and Declarations of Interest 
  

 

 No declarations were made.  
 

 

2   Membership and Terms of Reference 
  

 

 Decision 
Portfolio Members noted their membership and Terms of Reference for 
2015/16.  
 

 

3   Portfolio Priorities and Representation for 2015-16 
  

 

 The Chair introduced the report which set out the proposed priorities and 
work programme for the Community Wellbeing Portfolio for 2015/16. The 
report also outlined the LGA-wide priorities which the Leadership Board 
had requested to be developed by the various Boards and Portfolios, 
which would cover devolution and the future shape of local government; 
housing; finance; and promoting health and wellbeing.  
 
Mark Norris, Principal Policy Adviser, set out proposals for how the cross-
cutting work on promoting health and wellbeing would be taken forward. 
There would be a particular focus on integration, prevention and early 
intervention, and the Portfolio would be able to work with council, 
stakeholders and other partners towards a positive impact on social care 
and the NHS. This area of work would also link into four overarching 
priorities for the Portfolio: a future vision for health and care systems; 
funding for social care and support; the role of councils and place-based 
leadership in promoting health and wellbeing; and vulnerable people and 
older people. Members would be asked to nominate the area on which 
they would most like to focus, and form smaller Policy Groups from across 
the Portfolio’s membership. Members would also have the opportunity 
throughout the year to contribute to the cross-cutting work led by other 
Boards and Portfolios.  
 
In the discussion which followed Members made a number of comments, 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 

 

including: 
 

 The priorities outlined in the report were good ‘broad brush’ areas 
of work for Members to consider.  

 Mental health was a very important area to consider, and 
consideration should be given to care which was undertaken 
outside of GP surgeries, and how local government had helped to 
shape the transformation of services.  

 Local government should lead the national debate on the future of 
health and care, and how the culture of healthcare should change 
to produce better outcomes for residents.  

 It was important to work closely with other Boards and Portfolios, in 
particular the Children and Young People Board, as there were 
many opportunities for cross-cutting work.  

 Integration of end of life care should be considered under one of 
the work streams. 

 There should be a focus on support for carers, who were also often 
vulnerable people in their own right, and health inequalities across 
the country, especially in areas of deprivation.  

 Access to care and public expectation was an important 
consideration, particularly with regard to GP surgery opening 
hours.  

 
Decision 
Members noted the commissions from the Leadership Board and agreed 
the Portfolio’s priorities and work programme for 2015/16.  
 
Action 
Appointments to outside bodies to be made outside of the meeting.  
 

4   Community Wellbeing Portfolio Governance 
  

 

 The Chair introduced the report which set out a proposed model for the 
Portfolio’s pilot arrangements. It was proposed that the four lead members 
would meet as a Portfolio Holders Group on a monthly basis, and that four 
Portfolio Groups were created to cover the areas of the future vision for 
health and care systems; funding and support for adult social care; the 
role of councils in promoting health and wellbeing; and vulnerable people 
and older people.  
 
Members would attend Board-style meetings less regularly, and when 
meetings occurred they would happen at conferences or events which 
members would attend as a matter of course. There would be more of a 
role for individual members to act as regional ambassadors. Members 
would be asked to report back on the pilot arrangements at an appropriate 
time.  
 
In the discussion which followed members made a number of comments, 
including: 
 

 Members agreed that the pilot arrangements should be reviewed 
prior to the LGA General Assembly and Conference in 
approximately nine months.   

 Members supported the proposal of four Portfolio Groups of six 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 

 

members, each led by one of the lead members who would 
provide an overall steer.  

 The need for more regional working, and communications with a 
wider group of members was highlighted.  

 
Following a general discussion on the proposed pilot arrangements, 
members split into four groups to discuss specific points on how the pilot 
would operate. Members were asked to consider the following questions: 
 

 How can we work in more innovative ways while reducing costs to 
the LGA? 

 Engaging member authorities and councillors: 
o What should we use the Forums to do? 
o Have we made the most of the HWB ambassadors and 

what could be the role of the portfolio’s ambassadors going 
forward? 

o How can we keep councillors informed? 

 What does success for these new working arrangements look like?  
 
In the feedback session following the group discussions, members made 
the following comments: 
 

 The Portfolio should reconnect with Cabinet members across the 
country whose remit covered the priority areas of Community 
Wellbeing.  

 Forum meetings with a wider group of Community Wellbeing 
members should be used as a sense check to ensure that the 
Portfolio was progressing effectively.  

 Views of members who were not directly involved with the LGA 
should be sought to get as wide a view as possible.  

 A forum meeting at the forthcoming National Children and Adult 
Services Conference should be used to explain the new approach 
and get views from other members.  

 Smaller regional meetings could potentially be held at town halls 
across the country.  

 The role of a regional ambassador should be enhanced and 
refreshed.  

 Communications should be co-ordinated across all work streams, 
and good use should be made of publications such as First 
Magazine.  

 Members should provide a link with their local MP on community 
wellbeing matters.  

 
Decision 
Members agreed to the proposals set out in the report regarding the 
proposed model for the pilot governance structure.  
 
Action 
Officers to progress pilot arrangements as set out in the report.  
 

5   Regional Update of Health and Wellbeing Improvement Activity 
  

 

 Caroline Tapster, Director of Health and Wellbeing System Improvement, 
introduced the report, which provided an update of activity across the 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 

 

regions to support Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) and the health 
and wellbeing system. It was highlighted that there was considerable 
turnover in the system among Chairs, Vice-Chairs and members of HWBs, 
and that succession planning was not always easy. HWBs were beginning 
to work closer with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), and had 
identified the need to share best practice across the sector in a better way 
and to a wider audience.  
 
Cllr Sue Woolley, Chair of the East Midlands HWB, reported on the work 
of her HWB. She explained in detail some of the work which had been 
undertaken, issues which had arisen, and how the HWB interacted with 
CCGs and NHS England.  
 
In the discussion which followed, members raised the following points: 
 

 Members agreed on the importance of feedback from regional 
groups such as HWBs, particularly as part of the new portfolio 
working arrangements.  

 The link between NHS England and local government should be 
improved to maximise the benefits at local level. Members noted 
that the strategic relationship with NHS Enfgland was very good, 
but more work could be undertaken on communication and 
broader connectivity.  

 Portfolio members should have links with HWBs and CCGs in their 
own areas, and feec back to the wider portfolio membership.  

 Regional Healthwatch groups provided excellent information on the 
work of CCGs and health authorities in their own areas.  

 HWBs should give consideration to succession planning to 
continue their work if a particular leader changed responsibility or 
election results changed the make up of the Board.  

 HWBs should have a place based approach, with peer reviews to 
highlight best practice across the country and provide construcuive 
feedback.  

 
Decision 
Members noted the update of activity across the regions the health and 
wellbeing system. 
 

6   Update on Other Board Business 
  

 

 The Chair introduced the report which included updates on various areas 
of work, including the Task and Finish Panels on Ageing and Housing and 
Vulnerable People, Dementia Friendly Communities guidance, the LGA’s 
‘Think local, act personal’ partner commitments, and the Asylum, Refugee 
and Migration Task Group.  
 
Sally Burlington, Head of Programmes, provided a further update on the 
Syrian refugee resettlement scheme. The Government had agreed to 
resettle 20,000 Syrian refugees over the following five years, and the LGA 
Chairman, Cllr Gary Porter, and the Task Group had been working to 
make sure councils were not disadvantaged a s a result. The LGA had 
been in frequent communication with council leaders across the country. 
Negotiations on costings were still underway, but the government had 
agreed to extend funding beyond the first year after the refugee arrived in 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 

 

the country. There had also been confirmation that the Syrian scheme was 
unlikely to bring in many unaccompanied asylum seeking children. It was 
expected that further information and detail on how the scheme will 
operate would be announced over the forthcoming weeks.  
 
In the discussion which followed members made a number of comments, 
including: 
 

 It was currently unclear which councils would agree to house 
refugees and which would not, but it was hoped that all local 
government would assist in the resettlement of refugees.  

 Dispersal of refugees was an important issue for clarification with 
the government. The dispersal scheme was run by Serco, but it 
was important that the right placements were made for different 
groupings of refugees.  

 Unaccompanied asylum seeking children would be the most 
vulnerable, and therefore it would be preferable to find family units 
in the region or who were already established in the UK where 
possible.  

 
Decision 
Members noted the updates included in the report.  
 

7   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
  

 

 Decision 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2015 were agreed.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 

 

Appendix A -Attendance  
 

Position/Role Councillor Authority 
   
Chairman Cllr Izzi Seccombe Warwickshire County Council 
Vice-Chairman Cllr Linda Thomas Bolton Council 
Deputy-chairman Cllr Gillian Ford Havering London Borough Council 
 Cllr Richard Kemp CBE Liverpool City Council 

 
Members Cllr Colin Noble Suffolk County Council 
 Cllr Vic Pritchard Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 Cllr Bill Bentley East Sussex County Council 
 Cllr Claire-Louise Leyland Camden Council 
 Cllr Sandra Samuels Wolverhampton City Council 
 Cllr Lynn Travis Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 
 Cllr Rachel Eden Reading Borough Council 
 Cllr Jackie Meldrum Lambeth London Borough Council 
 Cllr Mark Ereira Suffolk County Council 
 Cllr Doreen Huddart Newcastle upon Tyne City Council 

 
Apologies Cllr Liz Mallinson Cumbria County Council 
 Cllr Teresa O'Neill OBE Bexley Council 
 Cllr Barbara Cannon Allerdale Borough Council 
 Cllr Iain Malcolm South Tyneside Metropolitan Borough 

Council 
 

In Attendance   
 

LGA Officers   
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5





LGA location map
Local Government Association 
Local Government House

Smith Square

London SW1P 3HZ 

Tel: 020 7664 3131 

Fax: 020 7664 3030 

Email: info@local.gov.uk   

Website: www.local.gov.uk

Public transport 
Local Government House is well 

served by public transport. The 

nearest mainline stations are: 

Victoria and Waterloo: the local 

underground stations are  

St James’s Park (Circle and 

District Lines), Westminster 
(Circle, District and Jubilee Lines), 

and Pimlico (Victoria Line) - all 

about 10 minutes walk away.  

Buses 3 and 87 travel along 

Millbank, and the 507 between 

Victoria and Waterloo stops in 

Horseferry Road close to Dean 

Bradley Street. 

Bus routes – Horseferry Road 
507  Waterloo - Victoria 

C10 Canada Water - Pimlico - 

Victoria 

88  Camden Town - Whitehall 

- Westminster - Pimlico - 

Clapham Common

Bus routes – Millbank 
87  Wandsworth - Aldwych

3  Crystal Palace - Brixton -  

 Oxford Circus 

For further information, visit the 

Transport for London website  

at �����������	


Cycling facilities 
The nearest Barclays cycle hire 

racks are in Smith Square. Cycle 

racks are also available at  

Local Government House.  

Please telephone the LGA  

on 020 7664 3131. 

Central London Congestion 
Charging Zone  
Local Government House is 

located within the congestion 

charging zone. 

For further details, please call 

0845 900 1234 or visit the website 

at www.cclondon.com 

Car parks 
Abingdon Street Car Park (off

Great College Street)

Horseferry Road Car Park  

Horseferry Road/Arneway  

Street. Visit the website at  

�������������������	
����
���

Strutton G
round

H
orseferry 

Road

Great College St

Broad Sanctuary

Broadway

Bro
ad

way
Local 
Government 
House

M
illbank

rutton G
round

H
orseferry 

Road

Broad Sanctuaryuary

tto

Great College St
eat C ge S

10 minute 
walking  
distance

5 minute 
walking  
distance

P
age 7


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	 

